
GULF BREEZE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
APRIL 18, 2016 

          MONDAY, 6:30 P.M. 
  COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

  
1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

April 4, 2016, Regular meeting 
April 4, 2016, Community Redevelopment Agency Board of Directors meeting 
April 13, 2016, FY 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report Workshop 

 
3. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 
Proclamation declaring April 22, 2016, through May 6, 2016, "Paint this Town Purple" week  

 
4. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:   

     
Resolution No. 10-16  Establishing Series 2016 Gulf Breeze Local Government Loan 

Program for the purpose of making loans to participating local 
governmental entities   

 
Resolution No. 11-16  Authorizing participation in Series 2016 Gulf Breeze Local 

Government Loan Program and, amongst other things, 
authorizing execution and delivery of a loan not to exceed 
$6,200,000 from Series 2016A and a loan not to exceed 
$3,000,000 from Series 2016B 

 
Resolution No. 12-16  Supporting the 2017 Double Bridge Run 
        

5. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS* 
 

A. Approval of the 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and audit results  
B. Approval of a Special Event Application for the 2017 Double Bridge Run  
C. Authorization to accept easement on Daniel Drive  
D. Approval to pay invoice 328087 in the amount of $1,163.00 to Galloway/ Johnson/Tompkins/ 

Burr and Smith (GJTBS) for services rendered with regards to the Catawba Street right-of-way 
litigation 

E. Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation: 
 The Arbors of Gulf Breeze, 50 Joachim Drive,  

Request to construct a continuing care facility  



April 18, 2016, Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 
 
__________________________________ 
 

F. South Santa Rosa Utility Board Recommendation: 
 

1. Conditional Use Permit for Tiger Point 
 
Recommendation: The South Santa Rosa Utility Board urges the City Council to 
resolve the Conditional Use Permit for Tiger Point by September 1, 2016; and if not 
resolved by September 1st, commit to building the new Waste Water Treatment Plant 
on Bergren Road   

 
*These are items considered routine in nature and will be considered by one motion.  
If any citizen wishes to voice an opinion on one of the items, you should advise the 
Council immediately. 

 
6. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
A. Approval of stabilization and beautification of the Shoreline Drive right-of-way, in the vicinity 

of Sunset Kids Park  
 

B. Consideration of counterproposal from JG. Buehler & Company, Inc., for property located at 
1198 Gulf Breeze Parkway 
 

7. NEW ITEMS  
 
8. INFORMATION ITEMS  
 
9. PUBLIC FORUM  

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
If any person decides to appeal any decisions made with respect to any matter considered at this 
meeting or public hearing, such person may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, which record includes the testimony and any evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The 
public is invited to comment on matters before the City Council upon seeking and receiving recognition 
from the Chair.   If you are a person with a disability who needs accommodation in order to participate 
in a public hearing you are entitled to the provision of certain assistance.  Please contact the City 
Clerk’s office at (850) 934-5115 or at 1070 Shoreline Drive, Gulf Breeze at least one (1) week prior to 
the date of the public hearing. 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	4,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The 1,293rd Regular Meeting of the Gulf Breeze City Council, Gulf Breeze, Florida, was held at 
Gulf Breeze City Hall on Monday, April 4, 2016, at 6:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, Mayor Matt 
Dannheisser and Councilman David G. Landfair.  
 
The City Clerk gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of the minutes of the March 21, 2016, Regular 
Meeting.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
Councilman Landfair moved for approval of the minutes of the March 21, 2016, Community 
Redevelopment Agency Board of Directors Meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson Seconded.  The 
vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of the minutes of the March 30, 2016, Special Meeting. 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
PRESENTATION AND PROCLAMATIONS: 
  
Fire Chief Craig Carmichael introduced Lieutenant Joe Moorehead and congratulated Lieutenant 
Moorehead on a job well done.  Lieutenant Moorehead was instrumental in the fabrication of a 
forestry skid unit for the Fire Department.  The cost of a commercially acquired unit costs over 
$10,000.  Lieutenant Moorehead saved the City an estimated $5,800 to $7.800 by utilizing scrap 
metal from his job as a welder help make the unit.   
 
RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:   
 
Public Hearing 
 
 Ordinance No. 03-16  Amending Section 2-1 of the Code of Ordinance and Section 

 9(b) of the City's Charter pertaining to deadline for qualification 
 of candidates   

     (SECOND  READING AND PUBLIC HEARING) 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	4,	2016	 Page	2	
 

The City Clerk read the Ordinance by title.  The Mayor opened the Public Hearing.  Having 
received no comments, Mayor Dannheisser closed the Public Hearing.    
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of Ordinance 03-16. Councilwoman Bookout second.  
The vote for approval was unanimous 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM(S): 
 

A. Approval of Special Event Application for the Gulf Breeze Elementary School Run on 
April 13, 2016.  
 
Reference: Deputy Chief of Police memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the Special Event Application. 
 

B. Authorization for Ken Horne and Associates to provide engineering services for a paving 
and drainage project on Berry, Driftwood, Montrose, and Navy Cove. 
 
Reference: Director of Public Services memo dated March 23, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council authorize Ken Horne and Associates to provide 
engineering services for the paving and drainage project for Berry, Driftwood, Montrose, 
and Navy Cove. 
 

C. Authorization to request a revision in the West Florida Regional Planning Council rules 
concerning municipal representation.   
 
Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 23, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council pass a motion requesting that Section 
1.003(d) be revised allowing the voting representative of a municipal member be either 
an elected or appointed official appointed by the City Council or Commission. 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	4,	2016	 Page	3	
 

D. Endorsement of the preparation of conceptual plans for a waterfront park on Navy Cove. 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council endorse the preparation of conceptual plans 
for a waterfront park on Navy Cove Boulevard at Gilmore Bayou for potential submittal 
for a Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program (FRDAP) grant. 
 

E. Approval to pay invoices 95651 and 95652 for a total amount of $1,425.00 to Smolker, 
Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds, and Sheppard P.A. 
 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated March 18, 2016 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council approve payment of invoices 95651 and 95652 for a total amount 
of $1,425.00 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds and Sheppard P.A. 
 

F. Approval to pay invoice 327702 in the amount of $25,404.00 to 
Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith (GJTBS). 
 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated March 23, 2016 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council approve payment of invoice 327702 in the amount of $25,404.00 to 
Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith (GJTBS). 
 

G. Approval of a new employment agreement between the City of Gulf Breeze and Ed Gray. 
 
Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council approve the employment agreement with Ed Gray as presented. 
 
Councilman Landfair made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 4, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval 
was unanimous. 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	4,	2016	 Page	4	
 

H. Appointment of Beverly Zimmern and Chris Kemp to the Capital Trust Agency Board. 
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: 
That the City Council appoint Beverly Zimmern and Chris Kemp as members of the 
Board of the Capital Trust Agency. 
 

I. Appointment of Tourist Development Advisory Committee members 
 
Reference: Deputy City Manager memo dated March 24, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council appoint Mr. Tracy Goodson, Mr. Curtis 
Odom, Mrs. Kristen Loera and Mr. John McDonald to the Tourist Development Advisory 
Committee. 
 

J. Item Removed from Consent to Action. 
 
 

ACTION AGENDA ITEMS:     
 

A. Authorization to purchase and/or repurpose parking meters for Charitable purposes in 
line with the “Better Way to Give” program to aid the Escarosa Coalition for the 
Homeless. 
 

 Reference: Assistant to City Manager memo dated April 4, 2016 
 

Recommendation:  That the City Council approve the purchase and repurpose of several 
parking meters; staff to coordinate with LeaP for the appropriate signage to be placed on 
each meter; installation of two meters at City Hall and the Community Center and one 
meter at the Chamber building; coordinate with volunteer staff to periodically service the 
meters, and allow each meter to be sponsored by a local business for an appropriate fee to 
go to the coalition.   
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to approve Staff recommendation. Councilwoman Bookout 
seconded.  The vote for approval was 3 to 2 with Mayor Pro Tem Henderson and Councilman 
Landfair dissenting.  
 

 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	4,	2016	 Page	5	
 

B. Authorization to obtain Request for Proposals from landscape design firms to prepare 
conceptual landscape plans for projects funded by the donation from the Jo Nutt Estate.  
 
Reference: City Manager memo dated April 1, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council direct staff to prepare a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for a landscape design firm to: 1) prepare conceptual plans for extension 
of landscaping beds from the intersection of Daniel Drive to the east; 2) prepare 
conceptual plans for landscaping plans at business frontage locations; 3) present 
conceptual plans to the local garden clubs for input; and 4) preparation of plans and 
specifications for a final plan for both to be bid.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation.  Councilman 
Landfair seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
Mayor Dannheisser suspended the Regular Council meeting at 6:48 p.m. for the City Council to 
convene as the Board of Directors of the Community Redevelopment Agency.   The Mayor 
resumed the Regular Council meeting at 7:04 p.m. 

 
NEW BUSINESS:  None 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS:  None  
 
PUBLIC FORUM:      
 
Robert Turpin, 2 Madrid Ave, spoke in favor of a waterfront park at Navy Cove. In addition he 
asked the council to consider a green shores project or something similar in Woodland Park. 
Mayor Dannheisser suggested activating the Advisory Park Board and get the residents involved.    
 
Kevin Cook, 304 Navarre St, spoke in favor of a water front park at Navy Cove. Mr. Cook 
volunteered his to help enhance the site.   
 
 COUNCIL COMMENTS:   
 
Councilwoman Bookout advised that she has received complaints about street signs being 
difficult to read, specifically on Silverthorn, and requested another assessment be done.  Mr. 
Eddy advised that staff is currently working on assessing the street signs in the City.  
 
Councilwoman Bookout would like an update on the Golf Course.  She has received complaints 
on the condition of the greens and residents are concerned about seeding this late in the season.  



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	4,	2016	 Page	6	
 

Mayor Dannheisser requested that staff go out and survey the grounds.  The Council inquired 
about the Capital Improvement plan list from Integrity.  Mayor Dannheisser advised the Council 
that there are several items on the list that need clarification.  
 
Councilman Landfair requested an update on the City’s progress since the 2014 flood and that 
this item be placed on the agenda for discussion.       
 
 ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:15 p.m.  
 
 
 

  

Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk    Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY	

 

CRA	Board	of	Directors	Minutes	 	 April	4,	2016	 Page	1	
 
 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors for the Community Redevelopment Agency, Gulf Breeze, 
Florida, was convened at the Gulf Breeze City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, April 4, 2016, 
at 6:48 p.m.   
 
The following members were present: Councilwoman Renee Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry 
Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, Mayor Matt Dannheisser and Councilman David G. 
Landfair. 
    
The purpose of the meeting was for the Board of Directors of the Community Redevelopment 
Agency to consider the following:  
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM:* 
 

A. Approval to pay invoice 95653 in the amount of $150.00 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds, 
and Sheppard P.A. 
 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated April 6, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the CRA 
and authorize the payment of invoice 95653 in the amount of $150.00 to Smolker, Bartlett, 
Loeb, Hinds, and Sheppard P.A. 
 

Councilman Fitch made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Item A.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Henderson seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 

*These are items considered routine in nature and will be considered by one motion.  If any citizen 
wishes to voice an opinion on one of the items, you should advise the Council immediately. 
 
ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A. Acceptance of a proposal for professional engineering services with Mesimer and 
Associates of St. Petersburg Florida, related to the acquisition of city property at Wayside 
Park. 

 
Reference:  Deputy City Manager memo dated April 1, 2016 

 
Recommendation: That the City Council meet in their capacity as the Board of Directors 
for the Community Redevelopment Agency and accept the proposal from Mesimer and 
Associates of St. Petersburg, Florida as presented. 
 

Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to approve the Deputy City Manager’s recommendation.  
Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY	

 

CRA	Board	of	Directors	Minutes	 	 April	4,	2016	 Page	2	
 
 
 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:  None  
 
PUBLIC FORUM:  
 
Tom Naile, 100 Daniel Drive, inquired as to what projects are eligible for CRA funding. The 
Church would like to see fencing extended down Daniel to Joachim for safety, security and 
beautification purposes. The suggestion was made that the fencing could tie into the Sacred Heart 
MOB fencing. Mayor Dannheisser advised Mr. Naile that the City is currently waiting on a report 
by an engineering company listing improvements needed for Joachim Dr.      
   
Robert Turpin, 2 Mardrid, inquired about the acquisition of Wayside Park and mitigation for the 
4F property.  Mr. Eddy addressed Mr. Turpin’s concerns and advised him that the City has 
retained a law firm who specializes in this type of work. The acquisition of this property should 
be completed by the end of the year.   
 
  
ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7.03 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
       
Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL AUDIT PRESENTATION WORKSHOP                             
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Special	Workshop	Minutes																					April	13,	2016	 Page	1	
 

A Special Workshop by the Gulf Breeze City Council, Gulf Breeze, Florida, was convened at 
Gulf Breeze City Hall on Wednesday, April 13, 2016, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
The following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry 
Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, Councilman David G. Landfair, and Mayor Matt 
Dannheisser. 
 

A. Presentation of the 2015 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and audit 
results 

 
 Reference: Director of Finance memo dated April 5, 2016  
 
 
David Lister, Greg Storey, and Jenn Mostert with Saltmarsh Cleaveland and Gund appeared 
before the City Council and presented the City’s Annual Audit results.  
 
 

OPEN FORUM:   None 
 

  
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the workshop meeting at 6:25 p.m.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  APRIL 13, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							APRIL	13,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The Gulf Breeze City Council held an Executive Meeting at Gulf Breeze City Hall on 
Wednesday, April 13, 2016, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, Councilman David 
G. Landfair, and Mayor Matt Dannheisser.       
 
PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:   
 
Administering of Oath to Officer Kyle Simms.  Chief of Police Robert Randle introduced Officer 
Kyle Simms to the Council.  Mayor Dannheisser administered the oath to Officer Simms and 
then presented him with his badge.  Mayor Dannheisser thanked the officers in attendance for 
their valuable work and dedication to the safety and welfare of the City.    
 
ACTION AGENDA ITEMS 

 
A. Adoption of Resolution 10-16 creating Series 2016 Gulf Breeze Local Government Loan 

Program and Resolution 11-16 approving two loans from the newly created loan program 
  

Reference: City Manager memo dated April 8, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council adopt Resolution 10-16 creating a Series 2016 
Gulf Breeze Local Government Loan Program and Resolution 11-16 approving a loan of 
$5,000,000 for purchase of Tiger Point and equipment for Tiger Point and emergency 
repairs at Tiger Point and a loan of $1,800,000 for stormwater and other infrastructure. 
 
Tom Naile, 112 Windsor Place, spoke as Chairman of the South Santa Rosa Utility 
System Board, and advised that the Board unanimously approved the financing during its 
meeting on April 11, 2016.   
  

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place Resolution No. 10-16 on the April 18, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 
 
Councilman Landfair made a motion to place Resolution No. 11-16 on the April 18, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Mayor Pro Tem Henderson seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 

 
B. Approval of a Special Event Application for the 2017 Double Bridge Run  

 
Reference: Deputy Chief of Police memo dated April 6, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the request from the Pensacola Sports 
Association to change the Double Bridge Run course.   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  APRIL 13, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							APRIL	13,	2016	 Page	2	
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to place Staff's recommendation on the April 18, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 

 
C. Approval of stabilization and beautification of the Shoreline Drive right-of-way, south of 

Sunset Kids Park. 
 
Reference: Director of Parks & Recreation memo dated April 7, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council direct staff to proceed with this project, at a total 
project cost of $3,728.00.   
 
The City Council asked that the beautification efforts also include the east right-of-way 
on Sunset Boulevard, beginning at the corner of Sunset and Shoreline, and extend to the 
Skate Park parking lot.  It was also recommended that trees, such as crepe myrtles, be 
planted in the rights-of-way to help deter parking.  Staff will bring a proposal to the 
Council during its April 18, 2016, Regular meeting. 
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 18, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 

 
D. Authorization to vacate easement on Daniel Drive  

 
Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated April 7, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council declare the easement surplus and direct staff 
to work with NNGS, Inc., and the City Attorney to properly vacate the easement in 
exchange for improvements to the existing stormwater pipe and exfiltration trench and 
transfer of ownership to City.    
 
The Council directed Staff to use its discretion in resolving the issues with the easement. 
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 18, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
E. Approval to pay invoice 216792 in the amount of $5,040.00 to Vanasse Hangen Brustlin 

(VHB) for services rendered with regards to the Community Redevelopment Agency 
Master Plan Amendments   
 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated April 6, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the 
Community Redevelopment Agency on Monday, April 18, 2016, and approve payment 
of invoice no. 216792 in the amount of $5,040 to VHB.   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  APRIL 13, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							APRIL	13,	2016	 Page	3	
 

Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 18, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
F. Approval to pay invoice 328087 in the amount of $1,163.00 to 

Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith (GJTBS) for services rendered with regards 
to the Catawba Street right-of-way litigation 

  
 Reference: City Clerk memo dated April 7, 2016 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 18, 
2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 

 
G. Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation: 

 The Arbors of Gulf Breeze, 50 Joachim Drive 
 
 Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated April 8, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council, based on the recommendations of the 
Development Review Board and the Architectural Review Board, approve The Arbors of 
Gulf Breeze project and direct staff to issue the Development Order conditioned upon the 
receipt of a photometric study of the parking lot lighting on the north side of the property 
and a revision to the stormwater plans.   
 
The City Manager advised that the developer has provided the photometric study and a 
revised stormwater plan and they have met the City's requirements.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Henderson advised the Council that the Architectural Review Board would like to 
convene a workshop to review the Code of Ordinance and the Master Plan to determine if 
revisions/changes should be made to the Code as it relates to the area design standards.   
 
Robert Turpin, 2 Madrid Avenue, asked questions about the project as it relates to height, 
buffer distance, and vegetation.   
  

Councilman Landfair made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the April 18, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
NEW ITEMS      
 

A. South Santa Rosa Utility Board Recommendation: 
 

1. Conditional Use Permit for Tiger Point 
 

Recommendation: The South Santa Rosa Utility Board urges the City Council to resolve 
the Conditional Use Permit for Tiger Point by September 1, 2016; and if not resolved by 
September 1st, commit to building the new Waste Water Treatment Plant on Bergren 
Road.   

 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  APRIL 13, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							APRIL	13,	2016	 Page	4	
 

Tom Naile, 112 Windsor Place, spoke as Chairman of the South Santa Rosa Utility 
System.  He advised that the Bergren Road plans are ready to go; they simply need to be 
"dusted off."   There are no plans for Tiger Point.  He encouraged the involved parties to 
get together and give the SSRUS Board some direction on which location to build as 
soon as possible and would like this to happen before September 1st.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson asked staff to calculate the extra cost to customers should the 
City build on Bergren Road.   

 
Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to place South Santa Rosa Utility System Board's 
recommendation on the April 18, 2016, Regular meeting agenda. Councilman Landfair 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   
 
INFORMATION ITEMS  
 

A. Consideration of offer from J.G. Buehler & Co., for 1198 Gulf Breeze Parkway (Peyton 
Building) 

 
 Reference: Email dated April 13, 2016, to the City Manager from Kevin Hoffman 
 

The City Manager advised that Staff had received a counteroffer from J.G. Buehler & Co.  
He asked that the item be placed on the April 18, 2016, agenda for evaluation, analysis, 
and action.   Mayor Pro Tem Henderson asked that Council be provided with the last 
appraised value, the previous offer, and pertinent background information.  Mayor 
Dannheisser asked that Staff's memorandum also explain the conditions the City placed 
during the initial negotiations and how the new offer differs.  Councilwoman Bookout is 
not in favor of waiving the tap fees.  The City Manager recommended possibly paying 
the impact fees from the Community Redevelopment Agency fund. 
 

Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to place Staff's recommendation on the April 18, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 
 
 PUBLIC FORUM:   
   
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Councilwoman Bookout inquired about where the income from the golf course was placed.  The 
City Manager said that we have not received a lease payment yet but when we do the City 
Council will decide whether it is placed in SSRUS funds or the General Fund.  The first payment 
is expected on September 30th.  This matter will be discussed during the budget workshops.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson advised that he spoke with Mr. Johnson with the Escarosa Coalition 
on the Homeless.  He was advised that $284,000 (66%) of the contributions they receive goes 
towards salaries for eight employees.  He will update the Council when he learns more about 
how the contributions are disbursed.   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  APRIL 13, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							APRIL	13,	2016	 Page	5	
 

Councilman Landfair suggested that a master list of projects they have asked Staff to complete 
be created and prioritized so it can be determined if additional resources are needed to enable 
Staff to complete the tasks.  This will be discussed during the April 23rd workshop. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:31 p.m. 
 





 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. 10‐16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING 

A  SERIES  2016  LOCAL  GOVERNMENT  LOAN  PROGRAM  FOR  THE 

PURPOSE  OF  MAKING  LOANS  TO  PARTICIPATING  LOCAL 

GOVERNMENTAL  ENTITIES  FOR  THE  PURPOSE  OF  FINANCING  AND 

REFINANCING  CAPITAL  PROJECTS;  APPROVING  A  FORM  OF  TRUST 

INDENTURE WITH RESPECT TO THE  PROGRAM; AUTHORIZING OTHER 

ACTION  IN CONNECTION WITH  THE  PROGRAM; AND  PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  WHEREAS, the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “Sponsor”) was duly created under and 

pursuant  to  the provisions of  the Act  (herein defined) as a body politic and  corporate and a 

municipal corporation of the State of Florida (the “State”); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the Sponsor is authorized by the Act, among other things, to cooperate with 

other public agencies of  the State  in  the exercise of  their  common powers,  including, among 

other things, their powers to borrow money and finance or refinance projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Sponsor holds certain unencumbered,  legally available surplus monies 

(the “Program Deposit”), and the Sponsor desires to use such Program Deposit to establish the 

Series 2016 Local Government Loan Program (the “Program”) for making loans (the “Loans”) to 

participating  local governmental entities  (the “Participants”)  for  the purpose of  financing and 

refinancing capital projects pursuant  to Loan Agreements with  the Participants securing such 

Loans (the “Loan Agreements”); and 

WHEREAS,  the Sponsor desires  to enter  into a Trust  Indenture  (the “Indenture”) with 

U.S. Bank National Association  (the “Trustee”),  (i) whereby  the Trustee will hold, administer 

and  invest  certain  amounts  held  in  funds  and  accounts  established  under  the  terms  of  the 

Indenture,  (ii)  to provide  for  the  form of  the Loan Agreement  and  the  terms  and  conditions 

under which Loans may be made from proceeds held under the Indenture, (iii) to provide for 

the  terms  under which  Loans will  be  serviced,  and  (iv)  to  provide  for  other  general  terms, 

conditions and covenants relating to the Program; and 

  WHEREAS, the Sponsor desires to approve the Program, to approve the Indenture and 

to authorize the officers and employees of the Sponsor to take all action necessary to establish 

the  Program  and  to  execute  and  deliver  the  Indenture  in  the manner  contemplated  hereby; 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

 

BE  IT  RESOLVED  BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  CITY  OF  GULF  BREEZE, 

FLORIDA: 



 

2 

Section 1. Authority for this Resolution 

This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Act. 

Section 2. Definitions 

Capitalized  terms defined  in  the preambles of  this Resolution shall have  the meanings 

set  forth  therein.   The  following  terms  in  this Resolution  shall have  the  following meanings 

unless  the  text otherwise expressly requires.   Words  importing singular number shall  include 

the plural number in each case and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms 

and corporations. 

“Act”  shall  mean  Sections  163.01,  et  seq.  and  166.011,  et  seq.,  Florida  Statutes,  and 

Chapter 61‐2207, Laws of Florida, Special Acts of 1961, as amended and  supplemented  from 

time to time. 

  “City  Attorney”  shall  mean  Michael  J.  Stebbins,  P.L.,  or  such  other  attorney  as 

designated by the Sponsor. 

 

  “City Clerk” shall mean  the City Clerk of  the Sponsor or any assistant or deputy City 

Clerk of the Sponsor. 

 

  “City Council” shall mean the City Council of the Sponsor. 

 

  “City Manager” shall mean the City Manager of the Sponsor or any assistant or deputy 

City Manager of the Sponsor. 

 

  “Mayor” shall mean the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem of the Sponsor. 

 

  “Resolution” shall mean this resolution, as may be hereafter amended or supplemented. 

 

Section 3. Program Authorized 

The Series 2016 Local Government Loan Program  is hereby approved and established 

under the terms and conditions of the Indenture.  The proper officers of the Sponsor are hereby 

directed to take all action and steps deemed necessary to establish the Program, which are not 

inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Resolution. 

Section 4. Approval of Indenture 

The form of Indenture attached hereto as Exhibit ʺAʺ and made a part hereof, the other 

documents  referred  to  therein, and  the  form of Loan Agreement which  shall be  entered  into 

with Participants, attached to and described in the Indenture, and other documents necessary or 

desirable to implement the Program, are hereby approved and shall be executed by the Mayor 

and  City  Clerk,  with  such  provisions  or modifications  as  are  necessary  to  conform  to  the 



 

3 

requirements of the Program and are not inconsistent with this Resolution, as may be approved 

by the officers executing the same, such approval to be presumed by their execution thereof. 

 

Section 5. Designation of Administrator 

Gulf Breeze Financial Services, Inc., is hereby designated as the Administrator, as more 

fully described in the Indenture. 

 

Section 6. No Personal Liability 

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained  in the 

Indenture  shall  be  deemed  to  be  a  covenant,  stipulation,  obligation  or  agreement  of  any 

member, agent or employee of the Sponsor or the City Council in his or her individual capacity, 

and neither the members of  the City Council nor any official executing  the Indenture shall be 

liable personally thereon or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the 

issuance thereof.   

 

Section 7. No Third Party Beneficiaries 

Except  as  otherwise  expressly  provided  herein  or  in  the  Indenture,  nothing  in  this 

Resolution or in the Indenture, expressed or implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer 

upon  any  person,  firm,  or  corporation  other  than  the  Sponsor,  the  Trustee  and  the 

Administrator  any  rights,  remedy  or  claim,  legal  or  equitable,  under  and  by  reason  of  this 

Resolution or of the Indenture or any provision thereof.  The Resolution and the Indenture are 

intended  to  be  for  the  sole  and  exclusive  benefit  of  the  Sponsor,  the  Trustee  and  the 

Administrator. 

 

Section 8. Prerequisites Performed 

All  acts,  conditions  and  things  relating  to  the  passage  of  this  Resolution  and  to  the 

execution of  the  Indenture  required by  the Constitution or  laws of  the State  to happen, exist, 

and be performed precedent to and in the passage hereof, and precedent to the execution and 

delivery of  the  Indenture will, upon  enactment of  this Resolution, have happened,  exist  and 

have been performed as so required. 

 

Section 9. Authorization of All Other Necessary Action 

The Mayor, the City Clerk, the City Manager and the City Attorney for the Sponsor are 

each designated agents of the Sponsor in connection with the establishment of the Program and 

are  authorized  and  empowered,  collectively  or  individually,  to  take  all  action  and  steps  to 

execute and deliver any and all  instruments, documents or contracts on behalf of  the Sponsor 

which are necessary or desirable  in connection with the establishment of the Program and the 

execution  and  delivery  of  the  Indenture  and which  are  not  inconsistent with  the  terms  and 



 

4 

provisions  of  this  Resolution  and  other  actions  relating  to  the  Program  and  the  Indenture 

heretofore taken by the Sponsor. 

Section 10. Repealing Clause 

All  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  of  the  Sponsor  in  conflict with  the  provisions  herein 

contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

Section 11. Severability of Invalid Provisions 

If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be 

held contrary to any express provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though 

not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall  for any reason whatsoever be held 

invalid,  then  such  covenants,  agreements  or  provisions  shall  be  null  and  void  and  shall  be 

deemed separable from the remaining covenants, agreements or provisions and shall in no way 

affect  the validity of any of  the other provisions hereof or of  the Loans or of  the Participant 

Bonds issued hereunder. 

Section 12. Effective Date 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



 

5 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, THIS 

18th DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 

CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

(SEAL) 

 

By: _______________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

   

Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 



 

1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 11‐16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING 

PARTICIPATION  IN  THE  GULF  BREEZE,  FLORIDA  SERIES  2016  LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT LOAN PROGRAM FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING OR 

REFINANCING  THE  ACQUISITION  AND  CONSTRUCTION  OF  CERTAIN 

CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENTS  HEREIN  DESCRIBED;  AUTHORIZING  THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF  LOAN AGREEMENTS  IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH;  AUTHORIZING  THE  ISSUANCE  OF  NOT  TO  EXCEED 

$6,200,000 CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BOND,  SERIES  2016A AND 

$3,000,000  CAPITAL  IMPROVEMENT  REVENUE  BOND,  SERIES  2016B,  TO 

EVIDENCE  THE  OBLIGATIONS  OF  THE  CITY  TO  REPAY  SUCH  LOANS; 

PLEDGING  CERTAIN  REVENUES  OF  THE  CITY  TO  SECURE  THE 

REPAYMENT  OF  THE  BONDS;  MAKING  CERTAIN  COVENANTS  AND 

AGREEMENTS  IN  CONNECTION  THEREWITH;  AUTHORIZING  OTHER 

ACTION  IN CONNECTION WITH THE DELIVERY OF SUCH BONDS; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  WHEREAS, the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida (the “City”), is duly authorized pursuant to 

the  Act,  as  hereinafter  defined,  to  acquire  and  construct  certain  capital  improvements 

constituting capital projects of the City for the benefit of the citizens and residents of the City, 

and to borrow money and issue bonds to facilitate financing the costs of such projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Gulf Breeze, Florida, as sponsor (the “Sponsor”), has established 

a Series 2016 Local Government Loan Program  (the “Program”)  for  the purpose of  financing 

and refinancing certain capital projects for participating local governmental entities situated in 

the State of Florida; and 

  WHEREAS, the City desires to borrow from the Program for the purpose of financing or 

refinancing all or a portion of the costs of acquiring, constructing, and equipping certain water 

and  sewer utility  capital  improvements of  the City more  fully described  in  the Series  2016A 

Loan Agreement, herein defined (collectively, the “Water/Sewer Project”); and 

 

  WHEREAS, the City desires to borrow from the Program for the purpose of financing or 

refinancing  all  or  a  portion  of  the  costs  of  acquiring,  constructing,  and  equipping  of  capital 

improvements of  the City’s  facilities,  including, but not  limited  to,  certain  stormwater utility 

capital  improvements, all as more fully described  in the Series 2016B Loan Agreement, herein 

defined (collectively, the “Stormwater Project” and together with the Water/Sewer Project, the 

“Projects”); and 

 

WHEREAS, to secure the loan from the Program to finance the Water/Sewer Project (the 

“Series  2016A  Loan”),  the City will  enter  into  a  Loan Agreement  dated  as  of Closing Date, 



 

2 

herein defined (the “Series 2016A Loan Agreement”), between the Sponsor and the City, and to 

evidence  its obligations hereunder and under  the Series 2016A Loan Agreement,  the City will 

issue  its  Capital  Improvement  Revenue  Bond,  Series  2016A  (the  “Series  2016A  Participant 

Bond”); and 

 

WHEREAS, to secure the loan from the Program to finance the Stormwater Project (the 

“Series 2016B Loan” and together with the Series 2016A Loan, the “Loans”), the City will enter 

into a Loan Agreement dated as of the Closing Date (the “Series 2016B Loan Agreement” and 

together with the Series 2016A Loan Agreement, the “Loan Agreements”), between the Sponsor 

and  the  City,  and  to  evidence  its  obligations  hereunder  and  under  the  Series  2016B  Loan 

Agreement, the City will issue its Capital Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2016B (the “Series 

2016B Participant Bond” and together with the Series 2016A Participant Bond, the “Participant 

Bonds”); and 

 

  WHEREAS,  the City desires  to approve  the  form of Loan Agreements and Participant 

Bonds and  to authorize  the officers and employees of  the City  to  take all action necessary  to 

obtain  the Loans,  to deliver and  sell  the Participant Bonds  to  the Program and  complete  the 

financing and refinancing of  the Projects  in  the manner contemplated hereby and  in  the Loan 

Agreements; NOW, THEREFORE, 

 

BE  IT  RESOLVED  BY  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  CITY  OF  GULF  BREEZE, 

FLORIDA: 

Section 1. Authority for this Resolution 

This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Act. 

Section 2. Definitions 

Capitalized  terms defined  in  the preambles of  this Resolution shall have  the meanings 

set  forth  therein.   The  following  terms  in  this Resolution  shall have  the  following meanings 

unless  the  text otherwise expressly requires.   Words  importing singular number shall  include 

the plural number in each case and vice versa, and words importing persons shall include firms 

and corporations. 

“Act” shall mean Chapter 166, Part II, Florida Statutes, as amended, and other applicable 

provisions of law. 

“Administrator” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in each Loan Agreement. 

  “City Clerk” shall mean the City Clerk of the City or any assistant or deputy City Clerk. 

 

  “Closing Date”  shall mean  the date  on which  the  Series  2016A Loan Agreement  and 

Series  2016B  Loan  Agreement  are  executed  and  delivered  by  the  City  and  the  Sponsor, 

including the execution and delivery of each of the related Participant Bonds by the Participant.   



 

3 

 

  “Mayor” means the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem of the City. 

 

“Pledged  Revenues”  shall  have  the  meaning  ascribed  thereto  in  the  related  Loan 

Agreement. 

“Sinking Fund” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the related Loan Agreement. 

“State” shall mean the State of Florida. 

“Trustee” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the related Loan Agreement. 

Section 3. Findings 

It is hereby ascertained, determined and declared that: 

(A) The Pledged Revenues are not now pledged or encumbered in any manner. 

(B) The City is authorized to acquire, construct and equip each of the Projects, which 

Projects  are  now  necessary  for  the  purpose  of  providing  additions,  extensions  and 

improvements to its facilities, and providing for the health, public safety and the well‐being of 

the citizens and residents of the City. 

(C) There are not sufficient uncommitted funds of the City available to pay the costs 

of the Projects, and the City has determined that the essential public purposes to be provided by 

the  Projects  cannot  be  delayed  awaiting  availability  of  sufficient  uncommitted  revenues  to 

commence and complete the Projects. 

(D) The estimated Pledged Revenues more fully described  in each Loan Agreement 

will be sufficient to pay all principal of and interest on the related Participant Bond, as the same 

become due, and to make all required Sinking Fund and other payments required by the related 

Loan Agreement and Participant Bond. 

(E) The principal of and  interest on each of  the Participant Bonds and all  required 

Sinking Fund and other payments shall each be  limited obligations of the City, payable solely 

from and secured by an irrevocable lien upon and pledge of the Pledged Revenues as described 

in  and  to  the  extent  provided  in  each  Loan  Agreement.    Neither  Participant  Bond  shall 

constitute an indebtedness, liability, general or moral obligation, or a pledge of the faith, credit 

or taxing power of the City or the State or any political subdivision thereof, within the meaning 

of  any  constitutional or  statutory provisions.   Neither  the State nor  any political  subdivision 

thereof nor the City shall be obligated (1) to levy ad valorem taxes on any property to pay the 

principal  of  the  Participant Bonds,  the  interest  thereon,  or  any  other  administrative  or  costs 

incidental  thereto  or  (2)  to  pay  the  same  from  any  other  funds  of  the City  except  from  the 

Pledged Revenues, in the manner and to the extent provided in the related Loan Agreement. 



 

4 

Neither of  the Participant Bonds shall constitute a  lien upon any property of  the City, 

but  shall  constitute  a  lien  only  on  the  Pledged  Revenues  to  the  extent  and  in  the manner 

provided in the related Loan Agreement. 

Section 4. Projects Authorized 

The financing and refinancing of the Projects is hereby authorized.  The proper officers 

of  the  City  are  hereby  directed  to  take  all  action  and  steps  deemed  necessary  to  acquire, 

construct and equip  the Projects, which are not  inconsistent with  the  terms and provisions of 

this Resolution or the related Loan Agreement. 

Section 5. Approval of Loan Agreements 

The City hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor to execute, and its City Clerk to attest 

under the corporate seal of the City, the Loan Agreements and to deliver said Loan Agreements 

on behalf of the City, to the Trustee and to the Sponsor.  The Series 2016A Loan Agreement shall 

be  in  substantially  the  form  attached  hereto  as  Exhibit  “A”  and  the  Series  2016B  Loan 

Agreement  shall be  in  substantially  the  form  attached hereto  as Exhibit  “B”,  each with  such 

changes, amendments, modifications, omissions, schedules and additions as may be approved 

by  the Mayor.    Execution  of  each  Loan  Agreement  by  the Mayor  shall  be  deemed  to  be 

conclusive evidence of approval of such changes. 

 

Section 6. Resolution to Constitute Contract 

The City  hereby  covenants  and  agrees  that  this Resolution  shall  constitute  a  contract 

between the City and the owner of each Participant Bond and that all covenants and agreements 

set forth in the related Loan Agreement and Participant Bond to be performed by the City shall 

be for the equal and ratable benefit and security of the owner of such Participant Bond. 

The provisions hereof shall also be deemed to be for the benefit of the Trustee and the 

Sponsor. 

 

Section 7. Authorization of Participant Bonds 

Subject and pursuant to the provisions hereof, obligations of the City to be known as the 

“City  of  Gulf  Breeze,  Florida  Capital  Improvement  Revenue  Bond,  Series  2016A,”  herein 

defined  as  the  “Series  2016A  Participant  Bond,”  and  “City  of  Gulf  Breeze,  Florida  Capital 

Improvement  Revenue  Bond,  Series  2016B,”  herein  defined  as  the  “Series  2016B  Participant 

Bond” are each authorized  to be  issued  in  the aggregate principal amount not exceeding  the 

amounts set forth in the title hereof for the purpose of financing the each of the Projects therein 

described.   Upon the  initial delivery of the Participant Bonds to the Trustee of the Program  in 

accordance herewith, the authorization for the unissued, remaining portion of each Participant 

Bond, if any, set forth in the title hereof shall be deemed cancelled.   



 

5 

Section 8. Description of Participant Bonds 

  Each Participant Bond shall be dated the date of its execution and delivery, which shall 

be a date agreed upon by the City and the Administrator, subject to the following terms: 

 

  (A)  Loan  Rates.    Each  Participant  Bond  shall  have  an  initial  fixed  interest  rate 

determined  in  the  related  Participant  Bond  and  shall  include  the Annual  Program  Fee  and 

Ongoing Fees (as such terms are defined in the Loan Agreement).   

 

  (B)  Principal and  Interest Payment Dates.   Principal and  interest on  the Participant 

Bonds shall be paid as provided in related Loan Agreement.  

 

(C)  Prepayment of the Participant Bonds.  The Participant Bonds may be prepaid as 

provided in the related Loan Agreement. 

 

  (D)  Original Denomination.   Each Participant Bond  shall  originally  be  issued  in  a 

single denomination equal  to  the original principal amount authorized and  issued hereunder 

and under the related Loan Agreement, which denomination shall decrease commensurate with 

the reduction of principal as it is paid. 

 

Section 9. Form of Participant Bonds 

The Participant Bonds are  to be  in substantially  the  forms set  forth  in Exhibit A  to  the 

related Loan Agreement, together with such non‐material changes as shall be approved by the 

Mayor  and  the City Manager,  such  approval  to  be  conclusively  evidenced  by  the  execution 

thereof by the Mayor. 

 

Section 10. Execution of Participant Bonds 

  The  Participant  Bonds  shall  be  executed  in  the  name  of  the  City  by  the Mayor  and 

attested by the City Clerk, and its corporate seal or a facsimile thereof shall be affixed thereto or 

reproduced thereon.  The Participant Bonds may be signed and sealed on behalf of the City by 

any person who  at  the actual  time of  the  execution of  such Participant Bonds  shall hold  the 

appropriate office  in  the City, although at  the date  thereof  the person may not have been  so 

authorized. 

 

Section 11. Participant Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost 

In case a Participant Bond shall become mutilated, or be destroyed, stolen or  lost,  the 

City may  in  its discretion  issue and deliver a new Participant Bond of  like series,  tenor, date, 

maturity, denomination and interest rate as such Participant Bond in exchange and substitution 

for such mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost Participant Bond upon surrender and cancellation 

of  such mutilated  Participant  Bond  or  in  lieu  of  and  substitution  for  the  Participant  Bond, 

mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, and upon the owner furnishing the City proof of ownership 



 

6 

thereof and satisfactory  indemnity and complying with such other reasonable regulations and 

conditions  as  the City may prescribe  and paying  such  expenses  as  the City may  incur.   The 

Participant  Bond  so  surrendered  shall  be  cancelled  by  the  Trustee  for  the  Program.    If  the 

Participant  Bond  shall  have matured  or  be  about  to mature,  instead  of  issuing  a  substitute 

Participant Bond, the City may pay the same, upon being indemnified as aforesaid, and if such 

Participant Bond be  lost, stolen or destroyed, without surrender  thereof.   Any such duplicate 

Participant  Bond  issued  pursuant  to  this  section  shall  constitute  an  original,  additional 

contractual  obligation  on  the  part  of  the  City whether  or  not  the  lost,  stolen  or  destroyed 

Participant Bond be at any time found by anyone. 

 

Section 12. Modification or Amendment 

No modification  or  amendment  of  this Resolution  or  of  any  resolution  or  resolution 

amendatory hereof or  supplemental hereto, which adversely affects  the ability of  the City  to 

repay the Participant Bond may be made without the consent in writing of the Administrator.   

Section 13. City Obligated 

The City  is  hereby  authorized  and  directed  to  comply with  the  requirements  of  this 

Resolution,  the Loan Agreements and  the Participant Bonds  for  the purposes set  forth herein 

and therein; provided that nothing herein shall be deemed to create any personal liability of the 

members of the City or the Sponsor, or their officers or employees. 

Section 14. No Personal Liability 

No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement herein contained or contained  in the 

Participant Bond or Loan Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation 

or agreement of any member, agent or employee of  the City or  the City Council  in his or her 

individual capacity, and neither  the members of  the City Council of  the City nor any official 

executing  the  Loan Agreement  or  Participant  Bond  shall  be  liable  personally  thereon  or  be 

subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.   

 

Section 15. No Third Party Beneficiaries 

Except as herein or in the Loan Agreement otherwise expressly provided, nothing in this  

Resolution or in the Loan Agreement, expressed or implied, is intended or shall be construed to 

confer upon any person, firm, or corporation other than the City, the Trustee, the Administrator 

and  the Sponsor any  rights,  remedy or claim,  legal or equitable, under and by  reason of  this 

Resolution or any provision  thereof or of  the Loan Agreement.   The Resolution and  the Loan 

Agreement  is  intended  to  be  for  the  sole  and  exclusive  benefit  of  the City,  the  Trustee,  the 

Administrator and the Sponsor. 

 



 

7 

Section 16. Prerequisites Performed 

All acts, conditions and things relating to the passage of this Resolution, to the execution 

of  the Loan Agreement and  the Participant Bond  required by  the Constitution or  laws of  the 

State to happen, exist, and be performed precedent to and in the passage hereof, and precedent 

to  the  execution  and  delivery  of  the  Loan Agreement  and  the  Participant  Bond will,  upon 

enactment of this Resolution, have happened, exist and have been performed as so required. 

 

Section 17. Award of Participant Bond 

  Because of the characteristics of the Participant Bond, prevailing market conditions, and 

additional savings  to be realized  from an expeditious sale of  the Participant Bond,  it  is  in  the 

best interest of the City to accept the offer of the Sponsor to purchase the Participant Bond from 

proceeds of  the Program at a private negotiated sale.   Prior  to  the  issuance of  the Participant 

Bond,  the City shall receive  from  the Sponsor a Lender’s Certificate,  in substantially  the  form 

attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and a Disclosure Statement containing the information required 

by Section 218.385, Florida Statutes, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “D”. 

 

Section 18. Authorization of All Other Necessary Action 

The Mayor and City Clerk of the City, City Manager and the Attorney for the City are 

each  designated  agents  of  the  City  in  connection  with  the  issuance  and  delivery  of  the 

Participant Bond and are authorized and empowered,  collectively or  individually,  to  take all 

action  and  steps  to  execute  and deliver  any  and  all  instruments, documents  or  contracts  on 

behalf  of  the  City  which  are  necessary  or  desirable  in  connection  with  the  execution  and 

delivery of the Participant Bond and which are not inconsistent with the terms and provisions 

of this Resolution and other actions relating to the Participant Bond heretofore taken by the City 

including, without  limitation, execution and delivery of any escrow agreements and sale and 

purchase of investments. 

Section 19. Repealing Clause 

All  resolutions  or  parts  thereof  of  the  City  in  conflict  with  the  provisions  herein 

contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

Section 20. Severability of Invalid Provisions 

If any one or more of the covenants, agreements or provisions herein contained shall be 

held contrary to any express provision of law or contrary to the policy of express law, though 

not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall  for any reason whatsoever be held 

invalid,  then  such  covenants,  agreements  or  provisions  shall  be  null  and  void  and  shall  be 

deemed separable from the remaining covenants, agreements or provisions and shall in no way 

affect  the  validity  of  any  of  the  other  provisions  hereof  or  of  the  Participant  Bond  issued 

hereunder. 



 

8 

Section 21. Effective Date 

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 



 

9 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA, THIS 

18th DAY OF APRIL, 2016. 

CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 

(SEAL) 

 

By: _______________________________ 

Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:___________________________________ 

Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 12-16  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF 
BREEZE, FLORIDA SUPPORTING THE 2017 PENSACOLA DOUBLE 

BRIDGE RUN 
 
 WHEREAS, the Pensacola Sports Association (PSA) will host the 2017 Pensacola Double 
Bridge Run (the Run) on February 4, 2017, and that a portion of the Run traverses through the City 
of Gulf Breeze; and 
 
 WHEREAS, for the 2017 Run, the PSA has requested that the Florida Department of 
Transportation (FDOT) permit the closure of both northbound lanes of the Pensacola Bay Bridge 
to accommodate Run participants; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, as part of their evaluation of the PSA request, FDOT requires a Resolution 
from Escambia County, Santa Rosa County, the City of Pensacola, and the City of Gulf Breeze 
supporting the lane closures and the event; and 
 
 WHEREAS, FDOT and the PSA will  develop a Maintenance of Traffic (MOT) Plan for 
the proposed closure that shows a holistic and contiguous representation of the entire event route, 
to include the locations of all proposed traffic control devices, anticipated times of road closure, 
and details of traffic patterns for runners on both ends of the bridge, as well as aspects of proposed 
notifications to the traveling public, the proposed locations of traffic control officers and any 
emergency response services planned to be on standby during the event.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA: 
 
 Section 1: That the City of Gulf Breeze supports the 2017 Pensacola Double Bridge 
Run and the necessary road closures determined by FDOT based on their review of the MOT Plan. 
 
 Section 2: That this support is for the 2017 Run only and that an after action evaluation 
of the closure of the northbound lanes of the Pensacola Bay Bridge should be conducted to 
determine the effectiveness of future closures.  
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF 
BREEZE, SANTA ROSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, on this 18th day of April, 2016.   
 
       CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA 
 
 
ATTEST:      By: ___________________________ 
              Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 
__________________________ 
Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk or 
Stephanie Lucas, City Clerk 




















	April 18 2016 Regular Meeting
	APRIL 4 2016 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	April 4 2016 CRA MEETING MINUTES
	April 13 2016 Annual Audit Presentation Workshop
	April 13 2016 Executive Meeting Minutes
	Paint the Town Purple Proclamation
	Resolution 10 - 16 GBLGLP Creation of Series 2016
	Resolution 11 - 16 GBLGLP Loans from Series 2016
	Resolution 12 - 16 Double Bridge Run 04 14 2016
	The Arbors of Gulf Breeze - Kenneth Horne Assoc 04 14 2016
	Peyton Office Building 04 15 2016

